
 

REGULAR MEETING 

November 02, 2020 
10:00 AM 

 
Albany-Dougherty Government Center 
222 Pine Ave, Room 100, Albany, GA 31701 

 

 
AGENDA 

To comply with the request set forth by the Chairman of Dougherty County, GA and the 
guidelines of the Center for Disease Control (CDC) regarding the Coronavirus (COVID19) 
pandemic and social distancing, face coverings (masks) are required for all meeting participants. 
 
The public will also have access to the live meeting by accessing the Dougherty County Georgia 
Government Facebook page at facebook.com/Dougherty.ga.us or viewing the public 
government access channel (Channel 16). 

 
1.   Call to meeting to order by Chairman Christopher Cohilas. 

 
2.   Roll Call. 

 
3.   Invocation. 

 
4.   Pledge of Allegiance. 

 
5.   Minutes 

a. Consider for action the October 12th Work Session and October 12th Special Called 
Meeting Minutes.  ACTION: 

 
6.   Delegations (The Commission will hear comments on those items pertaining to  
    Dougherty County for which a public hearing has not been held or scheduled. 
       Please be brief, to the point, and considerate of time for others). 

a. Minister William Revills and Ms. Panzer Hall present to discuss transfer trucks 
violating posted signs in the community. 

 
8.   Purchases. 

a. Consider for action the purchase of two (2) 2021 F-350 Type 1 Ambulances for the 
EMS Department from the state contract vendor Wade Ford (Smyrna, GA), in the 
amount of $158,289 each for a total expenditure of $316,578.  Funding is budgeted in 
the SPLOST VII – EMS Ambulances & Equipment. ACTION: 

1



b. Consider for action the installation of an equipment shed at the Solid Waste Landfill 
from the lowest responsive and responsible vendor meeting specifications, Smith- 
Built Buildings (Dawson, Ga) in the amount of $23,879.49. The shed will replace a 
previously demolished building. Funding is budgeted in Solid Waste Capital Outlay. 
ACTION: 

c. Consider for action the Resolution to accept the quote to replace six (6) security 
cameras at the Jail from the lowest responsive and responsible vendor meeting 
specifications, CooperCraft (Tifton, Ga) in the amount of $23,676.99. Funding is 
budgeted in SPLOST VII - Jail Improvements.  ACTION: 

d. Consider for action the purchase of six (6) 2021 Ford Police Interceptor Utility Vehicles 
(each in the amount of $39,422.21) for Dougherty County Police from Sunbelt Ford 
(Albany, GA) for a total expenditure of $236,533.26.  The purchase will be “piggy-
backed” from the Commission’s award in the October 19, 2020 Regular Meeting.  
Funding will be provided by SPLOST VII. Assistant County Administrator  
Scott Addison will address.  Chief Kenneth Johnson and City of Albany Buyer 
Christina Strassenberg are present. ACTION: 

 
9.   Additional Business. 

a. Consider for action the Alcohol Application from Creekside 02 LLC., Sunita Patel 
licensee, dba Creekside 2, at 1900 Weymouth Dr. Ste B for Beer and Wine 
Package.   The Albany-Dougherty Marshal’s Office recommends approval.  ACTION: 

b. Consider for action the Alcohol Application from Temp Coffee & Brew, LLC, Viral Patel 
licensee, dba Temp Coffee & Brew, at 1900 Weymouth Dr. Ste B for Beer and Wine 
Consumption.   The Albany-Dougherty Marshal’s Office recommends approval. 
ACTION: 

c. Consider for action the Alcohol Application from Shiv 2020 LLC., Bhagvatiben Patel 
licensee, dba Hill Corner Food Store, at 335 N. County Line Road for Beer and Wine 
Package.   The Albany-Dougherty Marshal’s Office recommends approval. ACTION: 

 
10.  Updates from the County Administrator. 

 
11.  Updates from the County Attorney. 

 
12.  Updates from the County Commission. 

 
13.  Adjourn. 

 

 

Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to 
observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of 
the meeting or the facilities are required to contact the ADA Coordinator at 229-431-2121 
promptly to allow the County to make reasonable accommodations for those persons. 

2



DOUGHERTY COUNTY COMMISSION 

                                DRAFT  

WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

 

October 12, 2020 

 

The Dougherty County Commission met in Room 100 of the Albany-Dougherty Government 

Center on October 12, 2020.  Chairman Christopher Cohilas presided and called the meeting to 

order at 10:00 am.  Present [in the Chamber] was Commissioner Victor Edwards.  Commissioners 

Gloria Gaines, Russell Gray, Lamar Hudgins, Clinton Johnson and Anthony Jones participated via 

the audio-conferencing feature.  Also participating in the Chamber were County Administrator  

Michael McCoy, County Attorney Spencer Lee County Clerk Jawahn Ware and other staff.  The 

public and representatives of the media participated in person, via live streaming of the meeting 

on the County’s Facebook page and the government public access channel.  Assistant County 

Administrator Scott Addison was absent.  

 

The Chairman asked the Commission to review the minutes for the September 21st Regular 

Meeting and September 28th Special Called Meeting. 

 

The Chairman recognized EMA Director Chief Cedric Scott and GA Power Representatives,  

Jay Smith, Area Manager and Wayne Hardie, Hydro Manager to update the Commission on citizen 

concerns regarding flooding in Dougherty County.  Chief Scott provided an update on the recent 

townhall meeting and citizen’s request.  Services available for citizens were shared.  Mr. Smith 

introduced Mr. Hardie who provided an update on the operations of the Flint River Hydro Plant.  

Mr. McCoy asked questions that would provide clarification to assist with the Commission’s 

request from citizens.  Mr. Hardie answered Commissioner Gray’s questions.  Chairman Cohilas 

said that we could consider a follow up presentation on the matter later. 

 

The Chairman recognized Wes Sadler, Albany Tennis Association Representative, to provide an 

update on the proposed tennis center.  Mr. Sadler provided an overview on the Albany Complex 

and shared the importance of an expanded tennis center and the involvement of community 

partnerships for the projected location at Albany State University West.  The association’s goal is 

to grow the community participation from 400 to 3,000 in 10 years.  The desire is for growth to 

occur by working with the school system.  Commissioner Edwards clarified that the City of Albany 

is being asked to fund a position for a tennis director and the County is providing funding for the 

complex.  Commissioner Edwards did ask that the word “disadvantaged” be removed because the 

services are for all students. 

 

The Chairman called for a discussion of the recommendation to purchase one 2021 Kia Sedona 

LX in the amount of $29,815.70 and one 2020 Kia Sorento EX in the amount of $31,900 for the 

GBI Southwestern Regional Drug Enforcement Office from Hutchinson Kia (Albany, GA) for a 

total expenditure of $61,715.70.  Funding will be provided by the GBI SWRDEO Grant Fund.  

County Administrator Michael McCoy addressed.  Joe Chesnut, GBI Special Agent in Charge and 

City of Albany Buyer Christina Strassenberg were present.   

 

The Chairman called for a discussion of the recommendation to purchase two 2021 Ford Police 

Interceptor Utility Vehicles (each in the amount of $39,422.21), two 2021 Ford Police Interceptor 

3

Item a.



Utility Administrative Vehicles (each in the amount of $39,284.21) and one  2021 Ford F150-XLT 

(in the amount of $32,120.92) for the Sheriff's Office from Sunbelt Ford (Albany, GA) for a total 

expenditure of $189,533.76.  Funding will be provided by SPLOST VII and the General Fund 

(Risk Management).  County Administrator Michael McCoy addressed.  Deputy Chief  

Pamela Johnson, Chief Jailer John Ostrander and City of Albany Buyer Christina Strassenberg 

were present. 

 

The Chairman called for a discussion of the recommendation to replace the LED lights at River 

Front Park for Facilities Management from the lowest quoted vendor RHC (Albany, GA) for a 

total expenditure of $33,596.  Three vendors submitted bids with the highest being $35,800.  

Funding will be provided by SPLOST VII.  County Administrator Michael McCoy addressed.  

Facilities Management Assistant Director Donald Hood was present.  Mr. McCoy stated that this 

was a continuation of the Board’s investment in Riverfront Park.  

 

The Chairman called for a discussion of the recommendation to accept the Statewide Mutual Aid 

and Assistance Agreement with the State of Georgia.  The contract allows Dougherty County to 

make agreements for mutual aid assistance in emergencies.  County Administrator Michael McCoy 

and EMA Director Chief Cedric Scott addressed.  Mr. McCoy shared that the 2017 storms showed 

that this agreement is needed so reimbursement for services and costs could be provided. 

 

The Chairman called for a discussion of the recommendation from Public Works to apply for a 

Land & Water Conservation Fund Grant in the amount of $462,000 for Putney Park recreational 

improvements.  The grant provided through the Georgia Department of Natural Resources requires 

a 50% local match.  The county's portion of $231,000 will be provided by TSPLOST.  County 

Administrator Michael McCoy addressed.  Public Works Director Larry Cook was present.  There 

will be a follow up by staff for this opportunity shared by the Commissioner Johnson.  If awarded, 

this recommendation will be used for the Putney and Radium Springs area.  The use does qualify 

for transportation because a portion of the funding is used for walking trails.  Mr. Cook shared 

additional project components.  

 

The Chairman called for a discussion of the recommendation to declare the listed equipment as 

surplus and authorize the sale of same via an online auction or disposal by appropriate means.  

County Administrator Michael McCoy addressed. 

 

Commissioner Edwards requested that the City of Albany also acknowledge the County on signs 

when funding is provided for projects.  Chairman Cohilas stressed that this acknowledgement on 

signs will provide evidence of the County’s collaboration and how both entities have worked 

together even if we are unconsolidated.  Chairman Cohilas asked Mr. McCoy to confirm if the 

City of Albany Mayor is attempting to dismantle the Dougherty County Emergency Management 

department and start their own.  If so, verification is needed to make sure it is legal to do so.  If 

needed, the Chairman said that he could provide the recommendation letter from GEMA 

[regarding the current services] and he then readdressed the letter provided by the Mayor.   

Chairman Cohilas shared that the County Attorney is drafting a letter of historic significance of 

the tennis center and stated that there is no consensus from the Board to elect a Tax Commissioner.  

He asked Attorney Lee to also address the consensus in the letter. Lastly, he asked Attorney Lee 

to address the appointments to the ADICA Board and Hospital Authorities.  Chairman Cohilas 

shared that based upon the letter, it does not appear that there is a consensus from the City 

4

Item a.



Commission to conduct a health study. However, to save the city taxpayers money, he stated that 

we can send a copy of the study that was recently done by the County.  Attorney Lee provided 

some verbal responses and restated his understanding of the tasks assigned to him.  

 

There being no further business to come before the Commission, the meeting adjourned to a 

Special Called Meeting at 11:06 a.m. 

 

 

_______________________________ 

CHAIRMAN 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________ 

COUNTY CLERK 

5

Item a.



DOUGHERTY COUNTY COMMISSION 

                                DRAFT  

SPECIAL CALLED MEETING MINUTES 

 

October 12, 2020 

 

The Dougherty County Commission met for a Special Called Meeting immediately following the 

Work Session in Room 100 of the Albany-Dougherty Government Center on October 12, 2020.  

Chairman Christopher Cohilas presided.  Present [in the Chamber] was Commissioner Victor 

Edwards.  Commissioners Gloria Gaines, Russell Gray, Lamar Hudgins, Clinton Johnson and 

Anthony Jones participated via the audio-conferencing feature.  Also participating in the Chamber 

were County Administrator Michael McCoy, County Attorney Spencer Lee County Clerk  

Jawahn Ware and other staff.  The public and representatives of the media participated in person, 

via live streaming of the meeting on the County’s Facebook page and the government public access 

channel.  Assistant County Administrator Scott Addison was absent. 

 

The Chairman called for consideration of the recommendation from the County Attorney to enter 

into an Executive Session for the purpose of discussing disposition of property and then to adjourn.   

 

Commissioner Hudgins moved for approval.  Upon a second by Commissioner Edwards, the 

motion passed unanimously.   

 

There being no further business to discuss the Commission entered into executive session at  

11:07 a.m. 

 

 

_______________________________ 

CHAIRMAN 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________ 

COUNTY CLERK 

6

Item a.



7

Item a.



 

                 Scott Addison 
         Assistant County Administrator 

 

 

 

DOUGHERTY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

                          ADMINISTRATION 

        

 

 
222 PINE AVENUE | SUITE 540 | ALBANY, GEORGIA 31701 | 229.431.2121 office | 229.438.3967 fax  

dougherty.ga.us 

Agenda Item 

 

Date:   October 21, 2020 

 

Meeting Date:             October 26, 2020 

 

Subject/Title:  Equipment Shelter - Landfill 

 

Presented for:  Decision 

 

Presenter:                   Scott Addison, Asst. County Administrator 

 

Statement of Issue 

The Solid Waste Department is requesting to install an equipment shelter in the landfill parking 

lot area. 

 

History/Facts and Issues  

The Dougherty County Solid Waste Department is requesting to replace the previously 

demolished Building B with an open air shed. This shed will be used to shelter equipment from 

the weather during repairs and when the equipment is not in use.  Three quotes were obtained 

from R&M Construction (Albany, GA), Smith-Built Buildings (Dawson, GA) and Tyson Steel 

Buildings (Doerun, GA).  The highest quote was from R&M Construction for $32,500 and the 

lowest quote being from Smith-Built Buildings for $23,879.49. 

 

Recommended Action 

Recommend Dougherty County Commission accepts the quote from Smith-Built Buildings 

(Dawson, GA) for a total expenditure of $23,676.99. 

 

Funding Source 

Solid Waste Capital Outlay 

 

Quotes 

Smith-Built Buildings (Dawson, GA) $23,879.49 

Tyson Steel Buildings (Doerun, GA) $31,920.70 

R&M Construction (Albany, GA) $32,500 

 

8

Item b.



A RESOLUTION 
ENTITLED 

A RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE ACCEPTANCE AND EXECUTION OF A QUOTE PREPARED 
BY COOPERCRAFT COMMUNICATIONS INC FOR THE PURPOSE OF INSTALLING, TERMINATING 

AND PROGRAMMING THE CAMERA EQUIPMENT AT THE DOUHERTY COUNTY JAIL IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $23,676.99; REPEALING RESOLUTIONS OR PARTS OF RESOLUTIONS IN CONFLICT 

HEREWITH; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 
 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Dougherty County, Georgia is hereby desirous 
of approving and executing a Quote prepared by Coopercraft Communications Inc. for the 
purpose of installing, terminating and programming the camera equipment at the Dougherty 
County Jail in the amount of $23,676.99. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of Dougherty County, 
Georgia and it is hereby resolved by Authority of same as follows: 
 
 SECTION I    The attached Quote from Coopercraft Communications Inc. in the amount of 
$23,676.99 providing for the installation, termination and programming of camera equipment at 
the Dougherty County Jail is hereby approved and the County Administrator is hereby authorized 
to execute same.  The County Administrator is hereby authorized to execute any and all other 
documents necessary for full implementation of the Coopercraft Communications Inc. Quote.   
 
 SECTION II   All Resolutions or parts of Resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby 
repealed. 
 
 This the 2nd day of November, 2020. 
 
       BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF 
       DOUGHERTY COUNTY, GEORGIA 
 
       BY:___________________________ 
            Christopher S. Cohilas, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
County Clerk 

 

 

9

Item c.



 

                 Scott Addison 
         Assistant County Administrator 

 

 

 

DOUGHERTY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

                          ADMINISTRATION 

        

 

 
222 PINE AVENUE | SUITE 540 | ALBANY, GEORGIA 31701 | 229.431.2121 office | 229.438.3967 fax  

dougherty.ga.us 

Agenda Item 

 

Date:   October 21, 2020 

 

Meeting Date:             October 26, 2020 

 

Subject/Title:  Surveillance Camera Replacement (6) -Jail 

 

Presented for:  Decision 

 

Presenter:                   Scott Addison, Asst. County Administrator 

 

Statement of Issue 

The Dougherty County Jail is requesting to replace six surveillance cameras. 

 

History/Facts and Issues  

The Dougherty County Jail is requesting to replace six surveillance cameras. Two quotes were 

obtained from Coopercraft (Tifton, GA) and Mobile Communications America (Albany, GA).  The 

highest quote was from Mobile Communications America for $26,045 and the lowest quote being 

from Coopercraft for $23,676.99. 

 

Recommended Action 

Recommend Dougherty County Commission accepts the quote from Coopercraft for a total 

expenditure of $23,676.99. 

 

Funding Source 

SPLOST VII Jail Improvements 

 

Quotes 

Coopercraft (Tifton, GA) $23,676.99 

Mobile Communications America (Albany, GA) $26,045 

10

Item c.



11

Item d.



DOUGHERTY
COUNTY

Georg;,a'
222 Pine Avenue, Suite 540, Pos[ ORice eox 1827

Alhany, Georgia 31702- 1827

ALCOHOL LICENSE APPLICATION

Dd[ 20fAp JIICdIIOn:
OC[ ObBf7, 2020

GNewNppliCdnt TransferofOwnership

1NST0.URIONS: Every questlon mus[ be answereQ [ ypewntten or prin[ etl legibly in ink If Ihe space pmvitled is not suff<ient, answer the
ques[ ion on a separate sheet and intlicate in Ihe space provided that a separate sheet Is attache0. When mmpletetl the application musY be tla[eQ
signed and verified, unGer oaM by[ he applican[ and filed wkh Ne License InspeRoq Ciry of Albany, 240 Pine Ave, Ste 150, Albany, Geor9ia 3ll01.
with all supporting tlamments antl a money order, cashier' s or certifed check for the exaQ fee.  Vlease schetlule an appointment with Me
Chiaf Licensin9I^ spectar by falling 229- 4314118. Appointments are wheduleA Tuesdays and Thursdays from 10 a. m. to 2 p. m.

Administrative Fee: $ 50

Check Appropriate Block( s):

BEER, Consump[ ion    $ 500 WINE, Consumption      $ 350     LIQUOR, Package/ Consumption EZ, 000

BEER, Package 900 QWINE, Package 350     LIQUOR, Wholesale 53, 000

BEER, Brewers 3,000       WINE, ManufaRure       $ 1, 000   GACKAGELiquor, Beer, antl Wine 2, W0

BEER, Wholesale       $] 50 WME, Wlwlesale 500     CONSUMFiION- Lipuor, Beerand Wine 2, 500

LIQUOR, ManufaRure 3, 000

CORPORATiON NAME: Creekside 02 LLC.

TRADE NAME OF BUSINESS: Creekside 2

BUSINESS ADDRESS:
1900 Weymouth Or. Ste. B BUSINESS PHONE:( 2z9) 439- 8046

Albany Georgia 31707
COUMV IN WHICH

DoughertyQTY:      STATE:     ZIP CODE: BUSINE55IS LOCATED:

MAILING ADDRESS IF DIFFERENT FROM BUSINESS ADDRESS

MAIIING ADDRE55:      
Same As Above

QTY: STATE: IZIP CODE NUMBER:

THIS APPL[ CATION IS FiLED BY:    

9NGLEPROVNEfOR    PARTfiERSHIP OCOPOMTION( DacumentsRepuired)    OPRN lECl118( DacvmmtsRequiretl)

GENERALINFORMATIONLICENSEE

1. FULL NAME OF LICENSEE: Suni[a Patel

ADDRESS OF LEGAL RESIDENCE: 
COUNTV OF

y. Albany A; Georgia Z[ pCODE: 31707 RESIDENCE: Dougherty

M08ILE PHONE:  ( EMAIL: PateIb2480@gmail. com q E: 49

2. FULL NAME OF LICENSEE:

ADDRESS OF LEGAL RESIDENCE:

OUNTY OF

QTY:       Sip1E:      ZIP CODE: RESIDENCE:

MOBILE PHONE: EMA[ L: AGE: 12

Item a.



A). If applicant resided at current residence less than 2 years list past address:

3.  Manager/ Responsible Person Information ( Agent):         Managed by Applicant( Go to question # 4)

Name: Age:   Phone #

Address: City:   State:    Zip:

CERTIFICATION OF APPOINTMENT

I,   the applicant of this alcohol application do hereby appoint the above agent who
resides within the County of Dougherty, in the State of Georgia as my lawful and true manager/ responsible
person who conducts business for this establishment. This certification becomes a part of this application for the
business known as at

Agent Signature Date Applicant Signature Date

4,  List all Corporations or firms assaiated with this business or its principal offcers and their
percentages of ownership ( attach list If necessary):

Name Address Percentaqe

q Sunita Patel 100%

B

C

5. List the owner of the property or the property manager& company who issued the lease( include address &
phone number): Che[ k one:      Leased Zo  # of Months     Purchased/ Owner

Brijesh Patel

6. Has the applicant or any perwn listed in this application ever been convided of any felony under federel or
state law? YES NO      If yes, please provide details for each instance.

7. Has the applicant or any person listed in this application ever been convided of any violation of federal or
state law or regulation respecting to the manufacture, possession or sale of alcoholic beverages or who
has forfeited his or her bond to appear in tourt to answer charges for any such violations?

YES NO  ,  If yes, please provide details for each instance.

8.  Haveyoueverbeendeniedorhadanalmhollicensethathasbeenrevoked?

YES_ NO   ,  If yes give date, laation, and reasons.

13

Item a.



9. TYPEOFBUSINE55:( CheckOne)     
CONVENIENCE/ GROCERYSTORE

RESTAURANT
ppCKAGESTORE

0 PUB/ TAVERN
MULTI- PURPOSE FACILI7Y

NIGHTCLUB/ LOUNGE/ BAR
MUNICIPAL FAQLITY

HOTEUMOTEL
OTHER( SPECIFY

PRIVATE CLUB( NON- PROFIi

OATH

10,   I,
Sunita Patel

The Applicant),  being duly swom according to law, do swear or
affirm that the facts stated in the above application are true and correct.  Further that any false informa[ ion
that I have provided and should have known to be false may lead this application to be denied or revoked if
it is discovered at a later date.   Notwithstanding having criminal charges brought against me for false
statements.  I will promptly notiry the License Inspector of any changes N the above information.  I have
read, understand, and also agree to abide by the Ordinances for pougherty County, and any State or
Federal Laws or regulations governing the service or sale of almholic beverages. I further swear or affrm
that this application is made in order [ o procure an alcoholic beverage license in Dougherty County,
Georgia.

I am aware of the age requirement for the admittance to alcoholic establishments, Days and Hours of Sale,

and the requirement for Alcoholic Beverage Handlers Cards.  I further certify that my business meets the
required specifications and qualifcations for the type of business as indicated above.

SIGNATURE OF APPLICANT( S):

i. p  r. a. rZ

z.    

OoM; ss;oN 2?
i

Swor and subscribed before me this

o:.  orqq m;< -    day of  G^- Gl-r 20 O.
o

A  •

41CN' GR  
c{( 

S, tt< OBL\ G   ;• c      

9••,
9<

aez
n%' pe`:      N TARYPUBL 0 — 

J'
y'••....:...•:G4

OFFICEUSEONLV i. P

PROXIMIffES( LEAVE BLANK IF A TRANSFER OF OWNERSHIP):

A. Near t Scliool:      
3000    + Feet From:  Roberl Cross Mitldle ( 324 Lockett Station Rd.)

Must be qreater than 300 ft. for beer and wine, 600 ft. for dis[ illed spints)

B. Nearest Church:  
500     + Feet From:  Chnstian Life Missionary Baptist Church ( 3980 Gillionville Rd.)

Must be greater than 300 R.)

C. Other Distances:

1. N/ A feet.

Dis[ aze beM een Bars, NighRlubs, Tavems, Lounges wiNin 1, 000 feet of his applied loratlon.)

2. N/ A feet

If reques[ etl location is within 300 feet of Govemment owned or ope2te0 Alcohol Treatmen[ Cenler.)

3. N/ A fee[.

Qf reques[ etl IocaOon is wiMin 300 feet of any Housing Nuthority Pmperty.)

D. Packaqe5tores feet from existlng package store

b[ ated at MustDegreaterthan1, 500ft.)

14

Item a.



L5 Nis IocaOm or has ihis latation been II[ ense0 for alcoMR Yes m No licNo.  

IfYes, LicenseNumOer:       las[ VearLicensetl:    Fee  a  

BusinessName:     ABCDate  / O/AY: LG?tJ
s 7

I. icensee: Ac[ ep tl W:

ADDITIONAL INFORMATlON

New Construction

WORK SESSION DATE: 
OCtOb¢! 26, 2020 COPY OF FBVERTiSEMENT

NO' ICE QL APRIGPiION fOP CONSOMP-

iION O4qtCOMOLIC BEVEPAGES, BEEP RNU

REGULARMEERNG ATE: 
NOV21Ob2f2, 2020

WiJ veea ow enyCoun eunlnuapo-
C- 2 7 e s;° i mez I c es remp conee a

IDNING:  DISiRICT:      
Aiben . 6nsnPi

eymoum Dr, 9e. B.
Y A v¢ nNl[¢ Natlwill

d pl y Oe . 018 0 bBO & WiOB IiCBpSp 10 M
Applicanqs) meetai[ ena: Yes No IoeretloymeoougneM unN

Commisslm e11 a. m. on Nwsm6er 2 POPO
al] II Plne Arpnu¢. PWm ttq NOdnY. GP.

LwaU
9    

mte a: No

l•      s x,
rector/ Lice Inspec[ or Date

RecommeiWatlon:    Approvetl Disapprovetl

f          U
Chiefof li Designee Dat CountyClerk/ Designee Date

Remarks:    Apprwed DisapProved

COMMENTS:

ae ae/ oi9

15

Item a.



DOUGHERTY
COUNTY

G+' g
222 Pine Avenue, Suite 540, Post Off¢ e Box 1827

Albany, Georgia 31702- 1827

ALCOHOI LICENSE APPLICATION

Date ofAppliptlon: OCtObB 7, 2020 p New Applicant Transfer ofOwnership

INSfRUCTIONS: Every question must be answeretl, rypewritten or prin[ etl legibly in ink. If Ihe space pmvided is w[ suff ient, answer [ he
ques[ ion on a separa[ e sheet and indicate in the space provitled Ihat a separate sheet is attachetl. When mmple[ ed the application must be dated,
signetl and verifietl, under oa[ h by the applicant antl letl with the License Inspectoq City of Albany, 240 Pine Ave, Ste 150, Albany, Georgia 3ll01.
wi[ h all supporting domments and a money order, cashier' s or certified check for [ he exac[ fee.  Vlease schetlule an aOPointment wRh t e
Chle! Licensinq lnapecYor by calling 239- 431- 2118. Appointmen[ s are schetluletl Tuesdays antl Thurstlays from 10 a. m. to 2 p. m.

Administretive Fee: $ 50

C ack App opriah elock( s):
6EER, Consumption    $ 500 O WME, Consumption      $ 350     LIQUOR, Packaqe/ Consumption 2, 000

BEER, Package 400 WINE, Package 350     LIQUOR, Wholesale 3, 000

BEER, Brev ers 3,000       WINE, ManufaRure       $ 1, 000   PACKAGE- Liquor, Beer, and Wine z, 000

BEER, Wholeele 50 V INE, Whokvle 500     CONSUMPIION- Liqwr, Beerand Wine 2, 500

LiQUOR, Manufac[ ure 3, 000

CORPORATION NAME: Temp Coffee& Brew LLC.

TRADE NAME OF BUSINESS: Temp CoRee& Brew

BUSINESS ADDRE55: 
1900 Weymouth Dr. Ste. B BUSINESS PHONE:( ZZ9 439- 8046

Albany Georgia 31707
COUNTYINWHICH

DoughertyCITY:       STATE:      ZIP CODE: BUSINE55IS LOCATED:

MAILING ADDRESS IF DIFFERENT FROM BUSINESS ADDRE55

MAILING ADDRESS:       
Same As Above

CITY: STATE:  ZIP CODE NUMBER:

THIS APPLICAl70N IS F1LED BY:

SINGLEPROVRIETOR    PARTMERSHIP OWPOWITION( DocummtsRepuired)    OPRNAIEQUB( DoamentSRequiretl)

GENERAL INFORMATION LICENSEE

1. FULL NAME OF L[ CENSEE: Viral Patel

ADDRESS OF LEGAL RESIDENCE:

Alban Geor ia 31707 COUNTY F Dou hertCCn': Y SiATE: 9 ZIP CODE: RESIDENCE:      9 Y

MOBILE PHONE:  ( EMAIL: smallv77@gmail. com q E: 43

2. FULL NAME OF LICENSEE:

ADDRESS OF LEGAL RESIDENCE:

COUNTY OF

CIN: STA1E:      ZIP CODE: RESIDENCE:

MOBILE PHONE:  EMAIL:  AGE:
16

Item b.



A). If applicant resided at current residence less than 2 years list past address:

3.  Manager/ Responsible Person Information( Agent):         Managed by Applicant( Go to question # 4)

Name:  Age:    Phone #

Address:   City:    State:    Zip:

CERTIFICATION OF APPOINTMENT

I,    the applicant of this alcohol application do hereby appoint the above agent who
resides within the County of Dougherty, in the State of Georgia as my lawful and true manager/ responsible
personwhoconductsbusinessforthisestablishment. Thiscertificationbecomesapartofthisapplicationforthe
businessknown as at

Agent Signature Date Applicant Signature Date

4.  List all Corporations or frms associated with this business or its principal officers and their
percentages of ownership ( attach list If necessary):

Name Address PercenWqe

q Brijesh Patel 60%

g Viral Patel 20%

Sarah Garrett 20%

5. List the owner of the property or the property manager & company who issued the lease( include address &
phone number): Check one:     Leased of Months      Purchased/ Owner

6. Has the applicant or any person listed in this application ever been convided of any felony under federal or
state law?  YES NO   ,  If yes, please provide details for each insWnce.

7. Has the applicant or any person listed in this application ever been convicted of any violation of federal or
state law or regulation respecting to the manufacture, possession or sale ofalcoholic beverages orwho
has forfeited his or her bond to appear in court to answer charges for any such violations?

YES NO   .  If yes, please provide details for each instance.

8.  Haveyoueverbeendeniedorhadanakohollicensethathasbeenrevoked7

YES_ NO      If yes give date, location, and reasons.

17

Item b.



9. TYPE OF BUSINESS:( Check One)

RES7AURANT
CONVENIENCE/ GROCERYSiORE

PUB( iAVERN
PACKAGE STORE

MULTI- PUR705E FAQLITY

NIGHTCLUB/ LOUNGE/ BAR MUNIQPAL FAQLPY

HOTEUMOTEL
OTHER( SPECIFY

PRNATE CLUB( NON- PROFIn
OATH

10.   I,
viral Patei

The Applicant),  being duly sworn according to law, do swear or
affrm that the facts stated in the above applicatlon are true and correct.  Further that any false information
that I have provided and should have known to be false may lead this application to be denied or revoked if
it is discovered at a later date.   Notwithstanding having criminal charges brought against me for false
statementr.  I will promptly notify the License Inspector of any changes to the above information.  I have
read, undersWnd, and also agree to abide by the Ordinances for pougherty County, and any State or
Federel Laws or regulations governing the service or sale of akoholic beverages. I further swear or affirm
that this applica[ ion is made in order to procure an almholic beverage license in Dougherty County,
Georgia.

I am aware of the age requirement for the admittance to alcoholic establishments, Days and Hours of Sale,

and the requirement for Alcoholic Beverage Handlers Cards.  I further certify that my business meets the
required specificatlons and qualifications for the rype of business as indicated above.

SIGNATURE OF APPLICANT( S):

1.

2.     f'

c C'/" m'M NpF',     Swom to and subscribed before me this

Pf9 oNEke'.  i
n-Y       

Q' R 
cPAv

aF` s J "—day of U e-a.,  , 20.

t
2, i i¢_      

i' 1- a  
C—

RwQ4  " UO\ 4ryOry
CT   N TARY PUBLI

h. APqi; e>a'\` 
OFRCE USE ONLY 4 FHTY C0 
PROXIMITIES( LEAVE BLANK IF A TRANSFER OF OYSFIE SHIP):

A. Nearest School:      
3000    + Feet From:   Robert Cross Middle ( 324 Lockett Station Rd.)

Must be greater than 300 ft. for beer and wine, 600 ft. for distilled spirits)

B. Nearest Church:   
1500     + FeetFrom:  Chnstian Life Missionary Baptist Church ( 3980 Gillionville Rd.)

Must be greater[ han 300 ft.)

C. Other Dis[ ances:

1.  NIA feet.

Dis[ anm belween Bars, NgMdubs, Tavems, Lounges within 1, 000 fee[ of this applieA Iocation. J

2.  N/ A fee[.

If requestetl location is wkhin 300 feet of Government owned or operated Alcohol Treatrnent CeMerJ

3.  N/ A fee[.

pf re uescetl loration is wi hin 300 feet of any Housing AUNoriry Pmperty.)

D. PackageStores feet from ezisting package store

bcated at Mustbe9reaterthan 1, SOORJ 18

Item b.



IS Mi5location or has ihi5locaGon been licensed fOr dlmhol?    Ves 0 NO Lic. No.

IfYes, licenseNumber: LastYearlicensetl:     yTy2 

Busin sName: ABC ate / p.'

licrosee:      
AccePtetl M:

ADDIf[ ONAL INFORMATiON

New Construction

WORK SESSION DATE: 
OC[ obBf 26, 2020 COFV OF ADVERTISEMENT

NOiICE Of APPLIGAiION FOP$ ALE aF BEEP

November 2, 2020 nuo wimE ucexs m iowuo s m re mo-

REGUTARMEETINGDATF.      c oo atmareaoino qne ryco n y
I Sunl s P¢ el. IntllnA ae C¢¢ k51Je 2, IOGIetl
al 19] 0 W moulA r, Pl any, GA 31I21,

20NING:  
C    

DISIRIQ:       ei e mlm i at i wlu apob mr sale of eeer a
ro  o e cwA4emJ by Ae Douglrer-

Hpplicant( s) mee[ Rlteda:  es No o e sOsaai i Pme tivenue, Aoom m,
aimny_ sn

Loca[ io is cnrena Ves No

Mrecto/ licen nsp c[ or  ,      Date

Recommeneation:    Approved Disapprovetl

L/ V1 i L     c   2
Chief of Poli  / DPsigriee Dat Counry Clerk/ Desi9nee Date

Remaiks:       APProvetl DisaPproved

COMMENTS:

RevlseG BR03919

Item b.



DOUGHERTY
COUNTY

U

222 Pine Avenue, Suite 540, Pos[ Office Bax 1827

Albany, Georgia 31702- 1827

ALCOHOL LICENSE APPLICATION

Date ofAppli tlm: ObO 7, 2020
p New ApPlicant TransFer ofOwnership

INSTRUCIIONS: Every question must be answeree, rypewntten or prin[ ed IegibN in ink [ f the space provitled is not sufficient, answer the
ques[ ion on a separate sheet antl ineicate In the space pmvided that a separa[ e sheet is attachetl. When completetl t e application mus[ be datetl,
signed and verifeQ unAer oaM by the appliwnt and fled with Me License InspeRoq Ciry oF Albany, 240 Pine Ave, Ste 150, Albany, Georgia 3ll01.
wi[ h all supporting tlocumentr and a money ortleq cashier' s or rertifed check for the exact fee.  Please schedule an appointment wRh the

Chief Licensin9l spectar by wllinq 229- 431- 2118. Appointmenis are scheauled Tuesdays and Thursdays from 10 a. m. to 2 p. m.

Administrative Fee: § 50
Check RpOroprfate elock( s):

BEER, Consump[ ion    $ 500 WME, Consumption       $ 350     LIQUOR, Package/ Consumption 2, 00

BEER, Package 400 WINE, Package 3W     LIQUOR, Wholesale 3, 000

BEER, Brewers 3, 000       WINE, Manufacture       $ 1, 000   PA KAG& Liquor, Bee, and Wine 2, 000

BEER, Wholesale 750 WINE, Wholesale 500     CpNSUMFTION- Liqmr, Beerand Wine 2, W0

LIQUOR, Manufacture 3,000

CORPORATION NAME: Shiv 2020 LLC.

TRADE NAME OF BUSINE55: Hill Corner Food Slore

BUSINESS ADDRE55:
335 N. Countyline Rtl. BUSINESS PHONE:( zZ9) 496- 2204

COUNTY IN WHICH
Albany Georgia 31705 DoughertyCIN:       S7ATE:      ZIP CODE: BUSINESS IS LOCATED:

MAILING ADDRESS IF DIFFERENT FROM BUSINESS ADDRE55

MAILING ADDRESS:
SAME AS ABOVE

CITY: S7ATE:  ZIP CODE NUMBER:

THIS APPLICATION IS F1LED BY:

9XGLEPROPRIFfOR    VARTNERSHIP 0 T[ ON( DocumeMSRequiretl)    OPRNATECLUB( DoiumentsRequiretl)

GENERAL INFORMATION IICENSEE

1. FULL NAME OF LICENSEE: Bhagvatiben Patel

ADDRE55 OF LEGAL RESIDENCE: 

Sylvester Geor ia 31791 COUNN OF WorthCffY: STATE: 9 ZIP CODE: RESIDENCE:

MOBILEPHONE  ( EMAILhillcorne2020@yahoo. com qGE: 4z

2. FULL NAME OF LICENSEE:

ADDRESS OF LEGAL RESIDENCE:

OUNTY OF

CIN: STATE:      IIP CODE: RESIDENCE:

MOBILE PHONE:  EMAIL:  AGE:
20

Item c.



A). If applicant resided at current residence less than 2 years list past address:

3.  Manager/ Responsible Person Information ( Agent):         Managed by Applicant( Go to question # 4)

Name:  Age:   Phone #

Address:   City:    State:    Zip:

CERTIFICATION OFAPPOINTMENT

I,     the applicant of this alcohol application do hereby appoint the above agent who
resides within the County of Dougherty, in the State of Georgia as my lawful and true manager/ responsible
personwhownductsbusinessforthisesWblishment Thiscertificationbecomesapartofthisapplicationforthe
business known as at

Agent Signature Date Applicant Signature Date

4.  List all Corporations or firms associated with this business or its principal offcers and their
percentages of ownership ( attach list If necessary):

Name Address PercenWqe

q Shiv 2020 LLC. 100%

B

C

5. List the owner of the property or the property manager & company who issued the lease( include address &
phone number): Check one:     Leased of Months      Purchased Owner

Bhagvatiben Patel

6, Has the applicant or any person listed in this application ever been convided of any felony under federal or
state law?  YES NO   .  If yes, please provide details for each instance.

7. Has the applicant or any person listed in this application ever been convicted of any violation of federal or
state law or regulation respecting to the manufacture, possession or sale of alcoholic beverages orwho
has forfeited his or her bond to appear in tourt to answer charges for any such violations?

YES NO   ,  If yes, please provide details for each instance.

8.  Haveyoueverbeendeniedorhadanalcohollicensethathasbeenrevoked7
YES_ NO   .  If yes give date, location, and reasons.

21

Item c.



9. NPEOFBUSINE55:( CheckOne)      
pCONVENIENCE/ GROCERYSTORE

RESTAURANT
pACKAGESTORE

PUB( fAVERN MULTI- PURPOSE FAQLITY
NIGHTCLUB/ LOUNGE/ BAR

MUNICIPAL FAQLifY

HOTEL/ MOTEL
OTHER( SPECIFY

PRNATE CLUB( NON- PROFIn
OATH

10,   I,
Bhagvatiben Patei

7} e Applicant),  being duly sworn according to law,  do swear or
a rm that the facts stated in the above application are true and correct.  Further that any false information
that I have provided and should have known to be false may lead this application to be denied or revoked if
it is discovered at a later date.   Notwithstanding having criminal charges brought against me for false
statemenfs.  I will promptly notify the License Inspector of any changes to the above information.  I have
read,  understand, and also agree to abide by the Ordinances for pougherty County,  and any State or
Federal Laws or regulations governing the service or sale of alcoholic beverages. I further swear or affirm
that this application is made in order to procure an alcoholic beverage license in Dougherty County,
Georgia.

I am aware of the age requirement for the admittance to alcoholic establishments, Days and Hours of Sale,

and the requirement for Alcoholic Beverage Handlers Cards.  I further certify that my business meets the
required specifications and qualifcations for the type of business as indicated above.

SIGNATURE OF APPLICANT( 5):

i lr tl.( nOvi   /

z. 
1' 1

NKCNN....F y Swom to and subs,cribed before me this
e,<:s taq sL          dayof U aGw    , 20 

4iJ l'-   
B

V

ryry:       lQ. fi
o     o.'    

NOTARY PUB
PHILOB;', `

OFFICEUSEONLX a a``
PROXIMIRES ( LEAVE BLANK IF A TRANSFER OF OWNERSHIP):

A. NearestSchool:      
3100   + Feet Fmm:   Robert H. Harvey ( 1305 E. 2nd Ave. Albany, Ga. 31705)

Must be grea[ er than 300 k. for beer and wine, 600 R. for distilled spirits)

B. Nearest Church:  
9000     + Feet From:   First Baptist Church of Acree ( 4405 Sylvester Rtl. 31705)

Must be greater than 300 R.)

C. Other Distances:

1. N/ A feet.

Distance beMreen Bars, Nightdubs, Tavems, Louriges within 1, 000 feet of this applied loration.)

2, N/ A eet

Qf requested loration is within 300 fee[ of 6overnment owned or operated Alcohol Treatment Center.)

3.  N/ A fcet.

f requested Iwation is wrthin 300 feet of any Housing AUNonry RopertyJ

D. PackageStores feet from existing package store

looted at Mustbegreaterthan1, 500ft.) 22

Item c.



Is Mis lomtlon a has Mis Ixation been licensed Por almhol?    Ves 0 No IiC. No. ( j Od- dDDDO`I

IfYeS, LicenseNumber: las[ Veartice aetl:     F y   37. oa

Bu4n255Ndme: ABCDate   / l///.5/'T._T
tirensee:      AcrnPted W:

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

New Constmction

WORK SE590N DATE: 
OCIObZf 26, 2020

COPV OF ADVERT[ SEMENT

NOi¢ E 4F APPLiCAiIpN i N 51LE Of BEEH
PNII WINE LICENSE o lora ions I Ae unlo-

November 2, 2020 0 ieaa oi oo nany oW iv,
REGUTAR MEEfING OATE:     

yt1eeiomia a s x Co unry une
20NING:

C-     
DISrRICT:   

6 Paea, aib. y, cn anas. pme mae rta i wii
apply Iw sele o 0¢er 6 wine licensa to Le
Ow514B1¢ U tryNO UW9 4y COun y GOmmiS

qppliwnt( 5) meet cntena: Ye NO lon at 10 a. m. on Nwe ber 2 2 ID a 3II
Plne Frenue. Prom 100. N eny, GA.

Locatio/    ts cnte.     r J No

s'  i/ i6/aoaa
rtector crose I     o Da e

Recommen ation:    Approved Disapprovetl

y f  G ZCZL'
ChiMo Poli a( esgnee ate CounryClerk/ Designee Date

Remarks:       pPOrovetl DisaPPrmeA

COMMENTS:

ReviseG e/ 201923

Item c.



1

Ware, Jawahn

From: Ware, Jawahn

Sent: Monday, October 12, 2020 4:23 PM

To: Donaldson, Anthony

Cc: McCoy, Michael; Clark, Bristria

Subject: <For your files> FW: liquor license

Chief- 

 

Please see the concern for the official files. 

 

I will provide a copy to the Commission during the October 26th Work Session. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Jawahn E. Ware 
Certified County Clerk/Procurement Manager 

 
 
"We must become the change we want to see" -Mahatma Gandhi 

 

From: McCoy, Michael <MMcCoy@dougherty.ga.us>  

Sent: Monday, October 12, 2020 4:21 PM 

To: Ware, Jawahn <JWare@dougherty.ga.us> 

Cc: Clark, Bristria <BClark@dougherty.ga.us> 

Subject: FW: liquor license 

 

Mrs. Ware – Ms. Golden is a constituent of Commission Jones and her schedule won’t permit her to attend the meeting 

for a liquor license for a store in her community.  I advised her that we’d forward her email to the Board prior to the 

commission meeting considering the liquor license.  Please forward her message to the Board prior to the meeting that 

will consider Mr. Patels liquor license.  Thanks.     

 

From: Janice Golden <mrshubaby@yahoo.com>  

Sent: Monday, October 12, 2020 2:50 PM 

To: McCoy, Michael <MMcCoy@dougherty.ga.us> 

Subject: Re: liquor license 

 

Mr. McCoy, 
 
Thank you so much for responding to my request so quickly.  I understand that the meetings cannot 
be changed.  We didn't want a store in our peaceful neighborhood, and we certainly don't want liquor 
sold there.  That being said, this is not directed toward Mr. Patel personally; it's just that we don't feel 
the need for a store here.  There will be much more traffic and more noise especially since it is 
basically in front of our house.  We will have been here 30 years in December and have never had 
any problems.  We just fear that having a store so close could definitely cause issues especially 

24

Item c.



2

knowing how many convenient stores have been robbed in our county.  Also, we are losing some 
very good friends and neighbors because of the store. 
 
Thank you again for responding to me.  Have a great afternoon. 
 
Janice Golden 
 
On Sunday, October 11, 2020, 03:36:44 PM EDT, McCoy, Michael <mmccoy@dougherty.ga.us> wrote:  
 
 

Good afternoon Ms. Golden, 

  

I’m Michael McCoy, County Administrator, and Commissioner Jones made me aware of your request.  Citizen 
participation is of the utmost importance to the Board.  However, it’s not possible to reschedule Commission Meetings as 
they are required to be held on Monday’s at 10 a.m. per the Cod of Ordinances-Dougherty County.  If you are unable to 
make the meeting, I’d encourage you to write a letter expressing your position on the liquor license.  You can forward it to 
me and/or Commissioner Jones and we will have it placed on the record when the matter is brought before the Board.   

  

Please let me know if I may be of further assistance. 

  

Thanks.  

  

Michael McCoy 

County Administrator     

  

From: Jones, Anthony <AnJones@dougherty.ga.us>  
Sent: Saturday, October 10, 2020 10:38 AM 
To: McCoy, Michael <MMcCoy@dougherty.ga.us> 
Subject: Fwd: liquor license 

  

  

  

  

  

Sent from my Verizon, Samsung Galaxy smartphone 

  

25

Item c.



3

  

-------- Original message -------- 

From: Janice Golden <mrshubaby@yahoo.com>  

Date: 10/9/20 6:11 PM (GMT-05:00)  

To: "Jones, Anthony" <AnJones@dougherty.ga.us>  

Subject: liquor license  

  

Mr. Jones, 

  

It has been brought to my attention that there will be a meeting on Nov. 2nd at 10 am concerning a 
liquor license for the store on the corner of Hill Rd. and Countyline Rd.  We would not like for the 
store to have a liquor license; however, we will be working and cannot attend the meeting.  Could the 
meeting not be at another time when people that are working could attend?  This seems a little unfair 
to me.  I'm sure you aren't responsible for the meeting, but since you are our commissioner, you are 
the only one that I know to contact about it. 

  

Thank you, 

Janice Golden 

PUBLIC RECORDS NOTICE: Georgia has a very broad public records law. Most written communications to or from City and County 
officials regarding City and County business are public records available to the public and media upon request. Your email 
communications may be subject to public disclosure.  

26

Item c.


	Top
	a.	Minutes a
	2020.10.12  Minutes Work
	2020.10.12 Minutes SCM

	a.	Purchases a
	Purchase a_ambulances

	b.	Purchases b
	Purchase b_Equipment Shelter

	c.	Purchases c
	Coopercraft Communications 10-22-2020 - Do Co Jail
	Purchase c_Cameras

	d.	Purchases d
	Purchase d_Utility Vehicles

	a.	Others a
	Other a_Creekside

	b.	Others b
	Other b_Temp Coffee &amp; Brew

	c.	Others c
	Other c_Hill Corner Food Store

	Bottom

